
 
 Gresham-Barlow  School District 
 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting / Work Session 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

January 9, 2014 
 



 

 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.  AGENDA 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION  
January 9, 2014 

 
Executive Session – 6 p.m. 
Litigation – ORS 192.660 (2)(h) 

 
Regular Board Meeting / Business - 7 p.m. 

 
Public Safety and Schools Building 

1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, OR 
 
 

 I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 II. ROLL CALL 
 
   Matt O’Connell, Chair   Kathy Ruthruff, Director 
   Carla Piluso, Vice-Chair   Kent Zook, Director 
   Dale Clark, Director  
   Dan Chriestenson, Director   Jim Schlachter, Superintendent 
   Kris Howatt, Director   Jerry Jones, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 III. COMMUNICATION FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
 Time has been set aside later on the agenda for Citizens’ Requests of the Board.  If 

anyone in the audience wishes to address the board this evening, there are yellow 
“Citizens’ Requests of the Board” forms on the table in the back of the room; please 
complete a form and give it to our board secretary, Ms. Cook. 

 
 IV. APPROVE MEETING AGENDA 
 
 V.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 All items listed below are matters considered by the board to be routine and will be 

enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
member of the board or persons in the audience requests specific items be removed 
from the consent agenda and placed on the regular agenda. 

 
 1. Minutes from Regular Business Meeting December 5, 2013 
  Minutes from Work Session December 12, 2013 
 2. School District Financial Summary 
 3. Personnel Changes 
 4. Out-of-State Travel 
 5. Policy Revisions 
 
 VI. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 
 
 6. Ashley DuPuis:  Firebird Honor Band Hiu 
 7. Kerri Cook and Staci Tatum:  All State Team Soccer Players Hiu 
 8. Michael Lindblad:  Teacher of the Year Hiu 



 

 

Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt. 
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business 
January 9, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 VI. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS (Continued) 
 
 9. Sharon Dunn-Hoffert:  National Board for  
  Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS) Bryant 
 10. School Board Recognition Month Vadnais 
 
 VII.  GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT 
 
 11. Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation (GBEF) Report Vadnais 
 
 VIII. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 
 
 IX. RECESS/RECONVENE   (5 Minutes) 
 
 X. COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND/OR REPORTS 
 
 This portion of the board meeting agenda has been provided for the presentation of 

advisory committee minutes.  No action or discussion is required by the board; 
however, there may be occasional reports or discussion regarding work being 
completed by the committee(s). 

 
 12. District Advisory Council (DAC) Vadnais 
 
 XI. BOARD REPORTS 
 
 XII. CABINET REPORTS 
 
 XIII. ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS 
 
 • Gresham-Barlow Education Association (GBEA)  (2 Minutes) 
 • Oregon School Employees Association (OSEA)  (2 Minutes) 
 
 XIV. CITIZENS’ REQUESTS OF BOARD   (3 Minutes per Guest / 15 Minutes Total) 
 
 XV. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 13. Preparation for Negotiating a Collective Bargaining Agreement  
  with the Gresham-Barlow Education Association Schlachter 
 14. Elementary Math Pilot Ketelsen 
 
 XVI. RECESS/RECONVENE   (5 Minutes) 
 
 XVII. ACTION ITEMS 
 
  First Reading 
 
 15. Open Enrollment (HB 3681) Application Process Hiu 
 



 

 

Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt. 
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business 
January 9, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 
  Second Reading 
 
  None 
 
 XVIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 Jan. 16, 2014: DAC Meeting - 7 p.m. 
  Hogan Cedars Elementary School 
  Board Representatives:  Kent Zook and Kathy Ruthruff 
 
 Jan. 20, 2014: Martin Luther King, Jr., Holiday 
  Schools and Offices Closed 
 
 Jan. 22, 2014 Achievement Compact Advisory Committee Meeting – 4 p.m.  
  Council Chambers Conference Room 
  Public Safety and Schools Building 
 
 Jan. 23, 2014: Board Work Session - 6 p.m. 
  Partnership Room 
  Center for Advanced Learning 
 
 Feb. 6, 2014: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m. 
  Council Chambers 
  Public Safety and Schools Building 
 
 XIX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Note: The board may, by majority vote, take action on items listed under first reading or information. 
 
JS:lc:1/8/14:2:20 PM 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, December 5, 2013 Page 1 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT. 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business  

 
December 5, 2013 

 
 
The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education met in regular session on Thursday, 
December 5, 2013, in the council chambers of the Public Safety and Schools building, 1331 NW 
Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by the chair, Matt O’Connell.  Other board 
members in attendance were Dale Clark, Kris Howatt, Kathy Ruthruff, Carla Piluso, and  
Dan Chriestenson.  Kent Zook was absent. 
 
The following central office administrators were present:   
 
 Jim Schlachter Superintendent 
 James Hiu Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations 
 Teresa Ketelsen Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning 
 Jerry Jones Chief Financial Officer 
 Tim Drilling Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability  
 Janell Black Executive Director of Student Support Services 
 Athena Vadnais Director of District and Community Relations 
 
Randy Bryant, executive director of human resources, and Anita Harris, executive director of 
elementary education, were absent. 
 
The chair led board members, administrators and all those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
MOTION 30 MEETING AGENDA   (7:02 p.m.) 
 
 It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kathy  Ruthruff and carried 6 to 0 to 

approve the meeting agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION 31 CONSENT AGENDA   (7:03 p.m.) 
 
 The following items were included on the consent agenda: 
 
 1. Minutes from Regular Business Meeting November 7, 2013 
  Minutes from Regular Work Session November 21, 2013 
 2. School District Financial Summary 
 3. Personnel Changes 
 4. Out-of-State Travel 
 5. Obsolete/Surplus Items 
 
 It was moved by Kathy Ruthruff, seconded by Dale Clark and carried 6 to 0 to 

approve the consent agenda as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, December 5, 2013 Page 2 

 PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS  (7:04 p.m.) 
 
 Elizabeth Larsen, Carmen West Outstanding Innovative Teacher Award 

Recipient:  The board recognized Elizabeth Larsen, Springwater Trail High 
School counselor, for being the recipient of the Carmen West Outstanding 
Innovative Teacher Award from the NW Innovative Schools Network.   
Ms. Larsen was selected for the award for her 25 years of starting innovative 
programs in support of at-risk students.  

 
 GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT  (7:12 p.m.) 
 
 There was no Foundation report this month. 
 
 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT  (7:12 p.m.) 
 
 Superintendent Schlachter reported that the school district is currently reviewing 

election data and planning a survey to learn more about the community’s 
decision on the recent school bond election.  The work also includes taking a look 
at how the bond package was developed and communications about the school 
bond.  All of this information will be used to help in decision-making about a 
future school bond election. 

 
 In the meantime, the district will be creating a plan for how to use general fund 

dollars to address three areas:  textbook adoption needs, technology upgrades, 
and safety improvements. 

 
 The district will also need to determine if all-day kindergarten will still be 

feasible in 2015-16 and what to do about under enrollment at Deep Creek 
Elementary and Damascus Middle School. 

 
 COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND/OR REPORTS  (7:24 p.m.) 
 
 District Advisory Council (DAC):  Carla Piluso and Matt O’Connell reported on 

the November 14, 2013, DAC meeting, which was held at Dexter McCarty 
Middle School. 

 
 BOARD REPORTS   (7:27 p.m.) 
 
 Board members summarized various meetings and other activities they 

participated in during the month.  
 
 CABINET REPORTS  (7:36 p.m.) 
 
 James Hiu reported about students accepted to All-State ensembles. 
 
 ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS  (7:37 p.m.) 
 

Rhett Hyman, a teacher at East Orient Elementary School, reported on behalf of 
the Gresham-Barlow Education Association (GBEA). 

 
Megan Sternberg, an educational assistant at Sam Barlow High School, reported 
on behalf of Oregon School Education Association (OSEA) Chapter 8 employees. 

 
 CITIZENS’ REQUESTS OF THE BOARD   (7:41 p.m.) 
 
 There were no citizens’ requests of the board. 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, December 5, 2013 Page 3 

 METRO EAST WEB ACADEMY – ANNUAL REPORT     (7:41 p.m.) 
 
 Christina Struyk-Bonn, teacher and curriculum coordinator, and Sam May-Varas, 

assistant principal, of the Metro East Web Academy presented the school’s 
annual report.  The report included the school’s goals and assessments related to 
student performance.  Approximately 400 middle and high school students 
attend the Metro East Web Academy. 

 
 An independent review of the Metro East Web Academy was conducted by 

Portland State University, and was included as part of the evaluation of the 
school. 

 
 OSBA ANNUAL CONVENTION REPORT     (8:14 p.m.) 
 
 Each board member reported on their experiences at the OSBA annual 

convention and summarized information they obtained while attending various 
sessions. 

 
 WEATHER / EMERGENCY CLOSURE PLAN     (8:22 p.m.) 
 
 Superintendent Schlachter reviewed the district’s procedures for monitoring 

inclement weather, and for providing notifications if it becomes necessary to 
modify school schedules and/or transportation services.  He indicated that the 
2013-14 calendar includes five days (June 16-20) at the end of the school year that 
could be used as possible make up days for emergency closures during the 
school year.  At the April 2014 board meeting, the administration will make a 
recommendation to the board regarding those days. 

 
 RECESS/RECONVENE  (8:28 p.m.) 
 
 The meeting was recessed at 8:28 p.m. and reconvened at 8:35 p.m. 
 
 FILL BUDGET COMMITTEE VACANCIES   (8:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION 32 It was moved by Kathy Ruthruff, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 5 to 1 to 

appoint Margaret Collins to budget committee Position 2, for a three-year term, 
which will expire on June 30, 2016.  Dan Chriestenson cast the dissenting vote. 

 
MOTION 33 It was moved by Kathy Ruthruff, Seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 

unanimously to appoint Justin Weatherford to budget committee Position 5, for a 
three-year term, which will expire on June 30, 2016. 

 
MOTION 34 ACCEPT RESULTS OF BOND MEASURE ELECTION   (8:44 p.m.) 
 
 It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Dan Christenson and carried 6 to 0 to 

accept the results of the November 5, 2013, bond measure election as accurately 
reported by the Multnomah County and Clackamas County elections offices. 

 
MOTION 35 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2012-13   (8:48 p.m.) 
 
 It was moved by Dan Chriestenson, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried  

6 to 0 to accept the 2012-13 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as 
presented. 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, December 5, 2013 Page 4 

 OSBA RESOLUTION, LEGISLATIVE POLICY COMMITTEE AND BOARD 
MEMBERS   (8:50 p.m.) 

 
MOTION 36 It was moved by Kathy Ruthruff, seconded by Dale Clark and carried 6 to 0 to 

elect Kris Howatt for the OSBA Board of Directors Position 18. 
 
MOTION 37 It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried 6 to 0 to 

elect Francisco Acosta, Jr., for the OSBA Legislative Policy Committee  
Position 17. 

 
MOTION 38 It was moved by Kathy Ruthruff, seconded by Dale Clark and carried 6 to 0 to 

elect Bruce McCain, for the OSBA Legislative Policy Committee Position 18. 
 
MOTION 39 It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried 6 to 0 to 

elect Kent Zook for the OSBA Legislative Policy Committee Position 19. 
 
MOTION 40 It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Dale Clark and carried 6 to 0 to 

approve OSBA Resolution No. 1 amending the OSBA constitution to correct 
inconsistencies in its election procedures. 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENTS    (8:57 p.m.) 
 
 Note: There will not be a DAC meeting in December 
  because of winter break. 
 
 Dec. 12, 2013: Board Work Session - 6 p.m. 
  Partnership Room 
  Center for Advanced Learning 
 
 Dec. 23 – Jan. 3: Winter Break 
  Schools and Offices Closed  * 
  (* The District Office will be Open December 23, 30, January 3) 
 
 Jan. 9, 2014: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m. 
  Council Chambers 
  Public Safety and Schools Building 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:59 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:        
 Linda J. Cook 
 Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and 
 Board of Directors 



Gresham-Barlow School District  - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, December 12, 2013 Page 1 
 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT. 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session 

 
December 12, 2013 

 
 
The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education held a work session on Thursday, 
December 12, 2013, in the Partnership Room at the Center for Advanced Learning, 1484 NW 
Civic Drive, Gresham, Oregon.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:04 p.m. by the chair, Matt O’Connell.  Other board 
members in attendance were Dale Clark, Kris Howatt, Kathy Ruthruff, Kent Zook, and  
Dan Chriestenson.  Carla Piluso was absent. 
 
The following central office administrators were present:   
 
 Jim Schlachter Superintendent 
 James Hiu Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations 
 Teresa Ketelsen Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning 
 Jerry Jones Chief Financial Officer 
 Randy Bryant Executive Director of Human Resources 
 Tim Drilling Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability  
 Janell Black Executive Director of Student Support Services 
 Athena Vadnais Director of District and Community Relations 
 
Anita Harris, executive director of elementary education, was absent. 
 
 POLICY REVIEW, SECTION E, SUPPORT SERVICES   (6:04 p.m.) 
 
 Jerry Jones led a review of the following policies: 
 
 EA Support Services Goals 
 EB/EBA Safety Program/Inspections 
 EBAA Reporting of Hazards 
 EBAC Safety Committee 
 EBB Integrated Pest Management 
 EBBA First Aid 
 EBBAA/GBEBC/ 
 JHCCC Infection Control – HIV, AIDS, HBV 
 EBBAB,GBEBAA/ 
 JHCCB Infection Control – HBV and Other  
  Bloodborne Pathogens 
 EBBB Injury/Illness Reports 
 EBBC Resuscitation Decisions  
 EBC/EBCA Emergency Procedures and Disaster Plans 
 EBCB Emergency Drills 
 EBCD Emergency Closures 
 ECAB Vandalism/Malicious Mischief/Theft 
 ECAC Video Surveillance 
 ECF Energy Conservation and Resource Conservation 
 EDC Authorized Use of District Equipment 
 EEA Student Transportation Services 
 EEAC School Bus Safety Program 



Gresham-Barlow School District  - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, December 12, 2013 Page 2 
 

 EEACA School Bus Driver Examination and Training 
 EEACC Student Conduct on School Buses 
 EEACCA Video Cameras on Transportation Vehicles 
 EEACD Use of District Vehicles for Student Transportation 
 EEACE Loading and Unloading 
 EEAE Student Transportation in Private Vehicles 
 EEBB Use of Private Vehicles for District Business 
 EFA Local Wellness Program 
 

These policies will be presented for second reading and adoption at a subsequent 
business meeting. 
 
RECESS/RECONVENE  (7:02 p.m.) 
 
The board meeting was recessed at 7:02 p.m. and reconvened at 7:07 p.m. 

 
 BOND MEASURE REVIEW    (7:07 p.m.)   
 
 Athena Vadnais led the discussion regarding the November bond measure 

election, which included a review of election results by precinct.  As part of the 
review, board and cabinet members divided into individual groups to analyze 
data provided for each precinct.   

 
 Ms. Vadnais also summarized the district’s bond measure communications plan. 
 
 OPEN ENROLLMENT, TRANSFERS, HB 2747    (8:13 p.m.)   
 
 James Hiu provided an overview regarding open enrollment, transfers and 

House Bill 2747.  (Refer to the agenda packet for details.) 
 
 DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION ORGANIZATIONAL CHART    (8:34 p.m.)   
 
 This topic was postponed to a subsequent meeting because of time. 
 
 MISCELLANEOUS  (8:34 p.m.) 
 
 Superintendent Schlachter informed the board that the vacancy for the Chief 

Financial Officer position will be posted next week.   
 
 ANNOUNCEMENTS  (8:41 p.m.) 
 
 Note: There will not be a DAC meeting in December 
  because of winter break. 
 
 Dec. 23 – Jan. 3: Winter Break 
  Schools and Offices Closed  * 
  (* The District Office will be Open December 23, 30, January 3) 
 
 Jan. 9, 2014: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m. 
  Council Chambers 
  Public Safety and Schools Building 
 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District  - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, December 12, 2013 Page 3 
 

 ADJOURNMENT    (8:43 p.m.) 
 
 There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:43 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:        
 Linda J. Cook 
 Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and 
 Board of Directors 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Jerry Jones 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE:  No. 2 – Financial Summary 
 
 
EXPLANATION: PERS Actuarial Valuation:  Milliman has completed and issued 

the December 2012 Oregon Employees Retirement System 
actuarial valuation.  The report is used to assist our district in 
preparing the required financial reporting disclosures under 
Statements 27 and 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board.   

 
 This valuation is advisory and does not affect our PERS 

contribution rates.  Our employer contribution rates effective  
July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2017, will be calculated in the 
December 31, 2013, actuarial valuation.  The report will not be 
available until December 2014 

 
PRESENTER: Jerry Jones 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Financial Report as of November 30, 2013 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval 
 
JJ:mkh:lc 



As of November 30, 2013
GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

Financial Report 2013-2014         

01-09-14 Board - Report 2013-14 - JAN 1

Actual Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Actual Adopted Variance
QTR 1 Nov QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 Annual YTD Budget To Budget

Revenue
Current Taxes -                  17,165,806     21,475,806     1,075,000       990,000          23,540,806      17,165,806      23,445,472      95,334
Prior Year Taxes 215,613          103,293          205,871          105,000          145,000          671,484           386,484           680,000           (8,516)
Other Taxes / Interest 25,105            19                   222                 3,405              295                 29,027             25,147             7,500               21,527

Total Taxes 240,718          17,269,118     21,681,899     1,183,405       1,135,295       24,241,317      17,577,437      24,132,972      108,345

Common School Fund -                  -                  -                  615,673          603,705          1,219,378        -                   994,424           224,954
County School Fund -                  -                  -                  1,687              5,984              7,671               -                   25,000             (17,329)
Federal Forest Fees -                  -                  -                  13,282            -                  13,282             -                   5,000               8,282
State School Fund (SSF) 23,685,103     5,930,320       17,792,717     17,828,694     11,885,798     71,192,312      35,534,922      71,445,497      (253,185)

Other SSF Revenue 23,685,103     5,930,320       17,792,717     18,459,336     12,495,487     72,432,643      35,534,922      72,469,921      (37,278)
23,925,821     23,199,438     39,474,616     19,642,741     13,630,782     96,673,960      53,112,359      96,602,893      71,067

  
High Cost Disability -                  -                  -                  -                  500,000          500,000           -                   500,000           0
Prior Year SSF -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                   0
State Restricted -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                   0

Other State Revenue -                  -                  -                  -                  500,000          500,000           -                   500,000           0

Tuition / Transportation 1,369              5,327              14,082            13,863            83,953            113,267           13,062             115,000           (1,733)
Earning on Investment 22,515            9,301              56,067            44,121            32,533            155,236           40,487             175,000           (19,764)
Student Fees / Admissions 12,128            25,443            95,536            26,291            204,206          338,161           53,705             340,000           (1,839)
Rentals 41,735            19,562            67,032            71,749            41,413            221,929           73,184             220,000           1,929
Donations 31,908            4,269              75,554            42,832            87,852            238,146           41,268             160,000           78,146
Services to other Funds 2,609              24,201            27,131            -                  217,621          247,361           29,243             250,000           (2,639)
Misc. 39,083            152,917          175,506          28,910            59,885            303,384           214,589           410,000           (106,616)
MESD Transfer -                  196,631          2,169,298       -                  -                  2,169,298        2,169,298        1,872,667        296,631
Other County Funds -                  -                  1,035              -                  -                  1,035               -                   -                   1,035
Drivers' Education -                  -                  61,320            -                  -                  61,320             -                   40,000             21,320
Other Federal Revenue -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                   0
Child Care Development -                  -                  8,363              4,207              17,801            30,371             -                   33,000             (2,629)
Sale of Fixed Assets -                  2,500              2,500              1,246              2,090              5,836               2,500               5,000               836
Bond Proceeds -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                   0
TRANFERS -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                   0

Total Other Revenue 151,347          440,151          2,753,424       233,219          747,354          3,885,344        2,637,336        3,620,667        264,677

$24,077,168 $23,639,589 $42,228,040 $19,875,960 $14,878,136 $101,059,304 $55,749,695 $100,723,560 335,744 55.3%
  5,500,000        BFB Budget

Expenditures  
Licensed Salaries 2,701,618       2,683,065       8,061,596       8,100,000       13,400,000     32,263,214      8,063,214        32,607,948      344,734
Support Staff Salaries 1,351,078       827,527          2,454,519       2,445,000       3,630,000       9,880,597        2,990,597        10,053,254      172,657
Admin Salaries 1,189,278       386,364          1,181,232       1,192,500       1,192,500       4,755,510        1,973,010        4,695,163        (60,347)
Confidential Salaries 139,821          46,917            140,833          141,000          141,000          562,654           233,654           562,605           (49)
Subs' / Temp Salaries 287,751          338,438          930,667          749,489          1,184,681       3,152,588        908,764           3,350,353        197,765

Total Salaries 5,669,546       4,282,311       12,768,847     12,627,989     19,548,181     50,614,563      14,169,239      51,269,323      654,760

PERS 1,238,684       995,154          2,983,262       2,985,000       4,340,000       11,546,946      3,226,946        12,079,796      532,850
FICA 427,247          321,449          953,392          945,000          1,473,000       3,798,639        1,065,639        3,901,131        102,492
Insurance 1,290,053       1,009,114       3,015,046       3,009,000       4,806,000       12,120,099      3,302,099        12,101,340      (18,759)
Other Benefits 235,758          111,592          376,576          360,000          500,000          1,472,334        472,334           1,581,575        109,241

Total Benefits 3,191,742       2,437,309       7,328,276       7,299,000       11,119,000     28,938,018      8,067,018        29,663,842      725,824

Purchased Services 1,464,672       1,287,113       3,335,981       3,800,000       3,700,000       12,300,653      3,800,653        12,112,303      (188,350)
Charter School Payments 1,849,483       562,834          1,424,942       1,515,000       1,060,000       5,849,425        2,769,425        5,109,223        (740,202)
Supplies & Materials 437,852          139,671          586,372          440,000          430,000          1,894,224        844,224           2,159,868        265,644
Capital Outlay 79,277            4,669              30,941            40,000            20,000            170,218           90,218             163,867           (6,351)
Other Objects 567,076          5,374              36,565            55,500            63,000            722,141           603,641           723,102           961
Transfers 550,000          -                  -                  -                  -                  550,000           550,000           550,000           0

$13,809,648 $8,719,281 $25,511,924 $25,777,489 $35,940,181 $101,039,242 $30,894,418 $101,751,528 $1,451,527 30.4%

Reserves - Contingency/Unappropriated Ending Balance 4,472,032         

Beginning Cash Balance   $6,530,804 $0   

Net Change in Fund Balance $106,223,560 Budget

       $6,530,804  
      6.5%  (Percentage of Expenditures Projections)

Expenditure Summary

Salaries 14,169,239    45.9%
Benefits 8,067,018      26.1%
Purchased Serv 6,570,078      21.3%
Supplies 844,224         2.7%
Capital Outlay 90,218           0.3%
Other Objects 603,641         2.0%
Transfers 550,000         1.8%
 30,894,418$  100.0%

 

GENERAL FUND

Total Formula Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Randy Bryant 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 3 - Personnel Changes:  Resignations/Terminations and New Hires 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The following resignations have been accepted, or terminations 

processed: 
 
 Classified Resignations/Terminations 
 

Michelle Roy, Educational Assistant – Title 1, Hall Elementary 
School.  Notice of Resignation received November 26, 2013, 
effective with her last day of work as an EA on November 29, 
2013. 

 
 In compliance with district policy, the following personnel are 

being recommended for employment: 
 

Licensed New Hires 
 

Michelle Roy, Title 1 Teacher, Hall Elementary School.  
Temporary Contract. New FTE. 

 
Classified New Hires 

 
Jenifer Little, Educational Assistant 3 – Title I, Hall Elementary 
School.  Replacing Michelle Roy who was reassigned to a teaching 
position. 

 
Deborah Martin, Educational Assistant 3 – Media / Health 
Assistant, Clear Creek Middle School.  Replacing Susan Rangel, 
who was reassigned due to the resignation of Kelly Gilman. 

 
Kaylee Nelson, Bookkeeper, Gresham High School.  Replacing 
Danna Nelson who resigned. 

 
PRESENTER: Randy Bryant 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval 
 
RHB:pd:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 James Hiu 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 4 - Out-of-State Travel 
 
EXPLANATION: The administration seeks approval for the following out-of-state 

travel plans: 
 

School Destination Date(s) Group Funds 

Gordon 
Russell 
MS 

Ebetsu, Japan 
Student 
Delegation 

Feb. 6-17, 
2014 7 students 

No 
District 
Funds 
Required 

Purpose:  Increased cultural and educational knowledge. 

 
PRESENTER: James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the out-of-state 

travel requests listed above. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval 
 
JH:pkh:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Jerry Jones 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 5 – Board Policy Updates 
 
 
EXPLANATION: Changes to the policies were presented for first reading during the 

October, November and December work sessions.  The changes 
were recommended by the Oregon School Boards Association. 

 
 Section D – Fiscal Management, Section E – Support Services and 

Section F – Facility Development policies have been reviewed by 
the board.  The board has provided input regarding the policy re-
writes.  They are now being submitted for approval through the 
consent agenda. 

 
PRESENTER: Jerry Jones 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 1. Policy Update List 
MATERIALS: 2. Policy Section D – Fiscal Management 
 3. Policy Section E – Support Services 
 4. Policy Section F – Facility Development 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board to adopt the policies as 

presented. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval 
 
JJ:mkh:lc 



POLICY UPDATE LIST – 01-09-14 

SECTION D – Fiscal Management 
DE/DEB/DEC ……….…Revenues from Private, State and Federal Sources 
DED ……………………….District Foundation and Community Support Groups 
DFCA ……………………..District Foundation 
DG …………………..…….Depository of Funds 
DGA ……………………….Authorized Signatures 
DH …………………..…….Bonded Employees and Officers 
DI …………………………..Fiscal Accounting and Reporting 
DIC …………………………Financial Reports and Statements 
DID …………...……………Fixed Asset Control 
DJ ……………………..……District Purchasing 
DJB …………………………Petty Cash Accounts 
DJCA ………………………Personal Services Contracts 
DK ………………………….Payment Procedures 
DM …………………………Cash in District Buildings 
DN ………………………….Disposal of District Property 
 
SECTION E – Support Services 
EA …………………………..………..…..Support Services Goals 
EB/EBA ……………………..………..…Safety Programs/Inspections 
EBAA …………………..…..……..…….Reporting of Hazards 
EBAC …………………………….……….Safety Committee 
EBB ………………………………….…….Integrated Pest Management 
EBBA ……..……………………………….First Aid 
EBBAA/GBEBC/JHCCC …………….Infection Control – HIV, AIDS, HBV 
EBBAB/GBEBAA/JHJCCBA ……….Infection Control – HIV, AIDS, HBV and Other Pathogens 
EBBB ………………………………………Injury/Illness Reports 
EBBC ………………………………………Resuscitation 
EBC/EBCA ……………………………….Emergency Procedures and Disaster Plans 
EBCB …………….…………………………Emergency Drills 
EBCD ……………………………………….Emergency Closures 
 
SECTION F – Facilities Development 
FA ……………………………………………Facility Development Goals 
FB ……………………………………………Facility Planning 
FC ……………………………………………Capital Construction Program 
FEA ………………………………………….Capital Improvement – Educational Program 
FEF/FEFB ………………………………….Construction Contracts – Bidding and Awards 
FF …………………………………………….Naming of New Facilities 
FFA ………………………………………….Memorials 
FJ …………………………………………….Temporary School Facilities 
 
 
Note:  Other Policies in these Sections will be submitted following final review and input by the 
Board. 



D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DE/DEB/DEC
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DE/DEB/DEC

Revenues from Private, State and Federal Sources

The Board may authorize, accept and use private, state or federal funds available to the district to carry out
district educational programs.  The district will comply with all regulations and procedures required for
receiving and using such funds.

Grant proposals for external funds from private sources will be submitted to the Board for evaluation and
approval where applicable.  When accepting funding from particular private sources, the purpose and goals
of each source shall be reviewed.

The Board directs that each presentation regarding the pursuit of outside funding include the obligations,
expectations or encumbrances which will exist when the grant or other outside funding ceases.

In the event an opportunity arises to submit a grant proposal and there is insufficient time to place it before
the Board, the superintendent is authorized to use his/her judgment in approving it for submission.  The
superintendent will review the grant proposal with the Board at its next meeting.  The Board reserves the
right to reject funds associated with any grant which has been approved.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.305 - 294.565
ORS 332.107

12/28/00*MW

Revenues from Private, State and Federal Sources - DE/DEB/DEC
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DED
Adopted: 10/05/95

Readopted: 5/02/02,; 7/09/09
  

District Foundation and Community Support Groups

The district acknowledges and appreciates the desire of school-related support groups to enhance school
programs and activities by making financial and in-kind contributions.  Such groups include, but are not
limited to, parent-teacher associations, parent-teacher clubs, booster clubs, community associations and
support groups for a particular sport or activity.  Generally, the purposes for such contributions are
identified by the officers of the support group in consultation with the school principal and/or sport or
activity advisor.

School fund-raising efforts must be approved by the school principal in advance.  In general, the district
limits schoolwide major efforts in which students are expected to assist in raising funds to two per year.

The district also acknowledges the possibility that private individuals and staff members, as well as other
organizations and foundations, may be willing to contribute financially to the well-being of school and
district programs and activities.  The district’s educational foundation is known as Gresham-Barlow
Education Foundation, a 501(c)(3), is an entity separate and distinct from the school district and is
governed by board of trustees which determines fund raising priorities and establishes guidelines and
limitations.

The educational foundation may also accept contributions from school support groups and community
organizations in accordance with the foundation’s goals and guidelines for a given year.  It is a goal of the
Gresham-Barlow School District Board that the resources generated by the foundation that support
programs and activities at all district schools maintain an equitable balance of resources so that all district
students have comparable educational opportunities.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.305 - 294.565
ORS 332.107
ORS 332.155

3/21/00*NC

District Foundation and Community Support Groups - DED
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DFCA
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DFCA

District Foundation

The Board authorizes the establishment and incorporation of a foundation for the purposes of accepting,
holding and administering funds and gifts to the district for special and general purposes.  The purposes of
funds administered by the foundation may include scholarship, student aid, capital improvement projects,
improvement and extension of programs and other activities of benefit to the district and its students.  Both
the Board and the Education Foundation Board of Directors will receive annual evaluations of all funded
projects.

The foundation will be incorporated under the Oregon Revised Statutes and registered as a tax exempt
corporation under Section 501 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The foundation will be governed by a board of directors whose selection, membership and functions will
be set forth in the foundation’s by-laws.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.305 - 294.565
ORS 332.107
ORS 332.155

3/21/00*NC

District Foundation - DFCA
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DG
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DG

Depository of Funds

The Board will, at its annual organizational meeting in July or at other times deemed necessary by the
Board, designate one or more banks which meet district, state and federal guidelines as official
depositories for district funds.

The Board desires to maintain a cordial working relationship with all banks within the district.  The district
will conduct a request for proposal for banking services no less than every five years to demonstrate
support for all banks while also guaranteeing the best service at a competitive rate.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.805 - 294.895
ORS 328.441
ORS 328.445

2/10/04*MW

Depository of Funds - DG
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DGA 
Adopted: 5/02/02

Authorized Signatures

The Board will, at its annual organizational meeting in July or at other times deemed necessary by the
Board, authorizes the district clerk and/or deputy clerk to sign district checks.  The Board may authorize
the use of facsimile signatures by those persons authorized to sign district checks.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.120
ORS 328.441
ORS 328.445 

HR2/10/04*MW

Authorized Signatures - DGA 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DH
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DH

Bonded Employees and Officers

All school district employees responsible for funds, fees, cash collections or inventory control will be
bonded to protect the district against loss in an amount determined by the Board and upon recommendation
of the district’s agent-of-record.  In compliance with Oregon statutes and administrative rules, the
superintendent and chief financial officer will have individual fidelity bond coverage or equivalent crime
coverage.  The district will pay the cost of such bondscoverage.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 328.441
ORS 332.525

OAR 581-022-1720

HR5/24/01*MW

Bonded Employees and Officers - DH
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DI
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DI

Fiscal Accounting and Reporting

The district’s accounting and reporting system will be in accordance with generally accepted accounting
procedures and will conform with state laws and regulations.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.305 - 294.565

OAR 581-023-0035

OR. DEP'T OF EDUC, PROGRAM BUDGET AND ACCOUNTING MANUAL.

4/3/01*MW

Fiscal Accounting and Reporting - DI
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_023.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DIC
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DIC

Financial Reports and Statements

Appropriate staff member(s) will be available at regular Board meetings to respond to questions and to
present current financial information.  The superintendent will make timely comments to the Board when
there are significant variances from the estimates.

The Board will receive monthly financial reports that include estimates of expenditures for the major
general fund accounts in comparison to budget appropriations, actual receipts in comparison to budget
estimates and the district’s overall cash condition.  Supplementary reports on other funds or accounts will
be furnished upon request of the Board or superintendent.

Appropriate staff member(s) will be available at regular Board meetings to respond to questions and to
present current financial information.  The superintendent will make timely comments to the Board when
there are significant variances from the estimates.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.155
ORS 294.311
ORS Chapter 297
ORS 328.465
ORS 332.105

OAR 162-010-0000 to -0330
OAR 162-040-0000 to -0160
OAR 581-023-0037

OR. DEP'T OF EDUC, PROGRAM BUDGET AND ACCOUNTING MANUAL.

HR4/3/01*NC

Financial Reports and Statements - DIC
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/297.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_162/162_010.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_162/162_040.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_023.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DID
Adopted: 5/01/95

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DL

Fixed Asset Control 

The district will maintain inventory records of all fixed assets.

Fixed assets are identified as all buildings and grounds owned by the district (total or in part) and all
equipment and furniture owned by the district considered nonexpendable ($5,000 or more).

Inventory records of fixed assets will identify assets by location and will show:

1. Original purchase cost (or best estimate);

2. Current value; and

3. Replacement cost.

Fixed assets will be identified on inventory records in separate categories as follows:

1. Purchased from district funds;

2. Purchased from U.S. Government and/or grant funds;

3. Gifts and/or donated items at fair market value.

Depreciation of fixed assets will be recorded in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), Statement 34.

Inventory records will be updated as changes are made (i.e., items are added or deleted).

The district will maintain a complete property inventory which lists all district sites, buildings, equipment
and supplies with a value greater than $1,0005,000.  This inventory will be updated annually.

The disposal of fixed assets for any reason (i.e., unusable, obsolete, etc.) must be in accordance with Board
policy.

The superintendent or designee shall develop rules and regulations procedures to implement the intent of
this policy.

END OF POLICY

Fixed Asset Control - DID
1-2



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.155

OR. DEP’T OF EDUC, PROGRAM BUDGET AND ACCOUNTING MANUAL.

HR10/22/98*MW

Fixed Asset Control - DID
2-2

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DJADJ
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02,; 1/08/09
Orig. Code(s): DJA

District Purchasing

All contracts must be approved by the Board before an order can be drawn for payment.  If a contract is
made without the authority of the Board, the individual making such contract shall be personally liable.  
Board approval may be granted through such means as the budget document, grants, resolutions and Board
priorities.

No Board member, officer, employee or agent of this district shall use or attempt to use his/her official
position to obtain financial gain or for avoidance of financial detriment for himself/herself, a relative or for
any business with which the Board member or a relative is associated.  Acceptance of any gratuities,
financial or otherwise, from any supplier of materials or services to the district by any Board member,
officer or employee of the district shall be in compliance with district guidelines and state law.

The function of the district’s purchasing is to serve the educational program by providing the necessary
supplies, equipment and services.  The Board declares its intention to purchase competitively without
prejudice and to seek maximum educational value for every dollar expended.  The acquisition of goods,
services, equipment and supplies is under the supervision of the chief financial officer.

All purchasing shall be guided by the following criteria:

1. Suitability to the requirements of the educational program;

2. Conformity to developed specifications when available;

3. Price;

4. Availability of maintenance service;

5. Delivery terms;

6. Record of serviceability when available.

Purchasing procedures shall be provided.

The chief financial officer will be responsible for developing and administering the school district’s
purchasing program.

The business office shall monitor the purchasing of goods, services, equipment and supplies for all schools
and other departments.  The business office is responsible for issuing purchase order numbers and to
monitor the purchase orders to assure that all rules and regulations have been followed.

District Purchasing - DJADJ
1-2



No obligation may be incurred by any officer or employee of the Board unless that expenditure has been
authorized in the budget or by Board action.  In all cases calling for the expenditure of district money,
except payrolls, the district’s approved rules and regulations will be used.

The superintendent or designee is authorized to enter into and approve payment on contracts obligating
district funds not to exceed $150,000 for products, materials, supplies, capital outlay and services that are
within current budget appropriations.  The Board shall approve all contracts that are collective bargaining
agreements or service contracts that include the provision of labor performed by district employees, such as
custodial, food service and transportation services.

The business office will coordinate with all schools and departments prior to the end of the school year the
purchase of equipment and other items appearing in the next fiscal year’s adopted budget.  During budget
preparation time, the chief financial officer will be available to assist with price and information for budget
preparations.

The business office is also available to find information, source and cost of items needed, to check to make
sure the item fits the need, to look for something to fill the needs and to consult with staff and recommend
solutions to problems.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 244.040
ORS Chapters 279, 279A, 279B 279C

ORS 294.311
ORS 328.441 - 328.470

ORS 332.075

OAR 125-025-0040

HR2/18/05*PD

District Purchasing - DJADJ
2-2

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/244.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279c.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_125/125_025.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DJB 
Adopted: 5/02/02

Petty Cash Accounts

In order to expedite refunds and minor purchases, revolving petty cash accounts may be established in
building locations at the discretion of the building administrator.  Expenditures against these funds must be
itemized and accounted for with appropriate records and receipts.  Budget codes along with approving
signatures of individuals authorized to expend district funds must be included on a petty cash accounting
report.

Each building administrator or designee will be responsible for accurate record keeping of expenditures
and will periodically submit to spot audits by the chief financial officer or one of the accounting staff.

Detail of expenditures will be submitted to the chief financial officer as appropriate for entry into the
accounting system and reimbursement of cash expended.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.311

HR4/1/02*NC

Petty Cash Accounts - DJB 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html


P

 R

  O

 P

  O

 S

 E

 D

Gresham-Barlow SD 10
Code: DJCA

Adopted:  

Personal Services Contracts

The district may enter into personal services contracts with qualified professionals as provided by ORS
279A.055.  Personal services contracts, as used in this policy, means contracts for specialized skills,
knowledge and resources in the application of highly technical or scientific expertise or the exercise of
professional, artistic or management discretion or judgment.  The district may enter into a personal
services contract with a current district employee only when the individual meets independent contractor
status in accordance with state, Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) requirements.

Selection of a personal services contractor will be based primarily on qualifications and performance
history, expertise, knowledge and creativity and the ability to exercise sound professional judgment. 

All personal services contracts shall be based on demonstrated qualifications and competence to perform
the required services, encourage competition, discourage favoritism and obtain services at a fair and
reasonable price.

Contracts for personal services in excess of $150,000 shall require prior Board approval.  

The superintendent will develop administrative regulations as necessary to implement this policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS Chapters 279, 279A, 279B and
279C
279B

ORS 332.107
ORS 670.600

OAR 459-010-0030

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE, PUBLICATION 1779: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR OR EMPLOYEE.

HR2/18/05*PD

Personal Services Contracts - DJCA
1-1

http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279b.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/670.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_459/459_010.html


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DK
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DK

Payment Procedures

All claims for payment from district funds will be processed by the business office.  Payment will be
authorized when the district’s approved rules and regulations are used, or in accordance with salaries and
salary schedules approved by the Board.

The chief financial officer will be responsible for assuring that budget allocations are observed and that
total expenditures do not exceed the appropriations in the budget.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 294.305 - 294.565
ORS 328.460

HR6/25/96*MW

Payment Procedures - DK
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DM
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DM

Cash in District Buildings

District revenue collected within schools will be taken to the central administration office or the district’s
designated depository on a weekly basis or sooner if significant amounts are collected.

Timely deposits of student activities revenue collected within school buildings will be the responsibility of
the principal.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107

3/21/00*NC

Cash in District Buildings - DM
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: DN
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): DN

Disposal of District Property

The superintendent shall report to the Board any equipment or material no longer suitable for school
purposes.  The Board, after reviewing the facts and determining that the equipment is no longer suitable,
shall declare items surplus and shall authorize the superintendent to dispose of said equipment in
accordance with state law.

The Board authorizes the superintendent to dispose of property valued at $1001,000 or less.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 279B.055
ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and
279C
ORS 332.155

HR6/18/97*NC

Disposal of District Property - DN
1-1

http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EA 
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): EA/EAA

Support Services Goals 

Through support services operations, the district will set appropriate standards of safety; promote and
protect the health of students and staff; and support the efforts of staff to provide high quality instruction as
follows:

1. Establish proper operation and maintenance of district buildings, vehicles, equipment and services;

2. Establish, through the superintendent and staff, procedures for managing buildings and grounds,
office equipment, vehicles, supplies and the food program;

3. Establish a maintenance program, including preventive maintenance, that will ensure a maximum
useful life of district property, vehicles, buildings and equipment;

4. Establish generally accepted management principles which comply with applicable laws and
regulations.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

OAR 437-001-0760
OAR 437-002-0020 to -0081
OAR 437-002-0260 to -0268
OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 581-022-0705
OAR 581-022-1420
OAR 581-022-1530
OAR 581-022-1610

12/28/00*NC

Support Services Goals - EA 
1-1

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_001.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EB/EBA
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): EB

Safety Program/Inspections 

Through its comprehensive safety program, the district will provide a safe working and learning
environment.  Accident prevention instruction will be given to students and staff;.  sSafety procedures will
be taught, and other precautions will be taken in order to reduce accidents and address potentially harmful
situations.

Buildings, grounds and equipment will be maintained in order to prevent accidents or injury to students,
employees and other citizens from fire, natural disasters, mechanical and electrical malfunction and other
hazards.

All facilities and grounds will be inspected regularly for evidence of health and safety hazards.  Such
hazards will be reported immediately to the district safety officer.

Facilities will be planned, equipped and maintained in accordance with appropriate local, state and federal
safety regulations.

Facilities will be provided with alarm systems, fire extinguishers and other safety devices required by state
and federal laws and regulations.

The superintendent will develop and implement a safety program which will include, but not be limited to,
compliance with and enforcement of all state and federal laws, rules and regulations.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 329.095
ORS 654.003 - 654.022

OAR 437-001-0760
OAR 437-002-0020 to -0081
OAR 437-002-0100
OAR 437-002-0140

OAR 437-002-0144
OAR 437-002-0145
OAR 437-002-0180 to -0182
OAR 437-002-0260 to -0268
OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0368
OAR 437-002-0377

OAR 437-002-0390
OAR 437-002-0391
OAR 581-022-0705
OAR 581-022-0606
OAR 581-022-1420
OAR 581-022-1530

Fazzolari v. Portland School District No. 1J, 303 Or. 1 (1987).
Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C.§§ 2601-2629 (2006); Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 2641-2656 (2006).
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101-12213; 29 CFR Part 1630 (2000); 28 CFR Part 35 (2000).

R2/12/04*NC_2/12/04*NC

Safety Program/Inspections - EB/EBA
1-1

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-654
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-001
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBAA 
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): EBAA

Reporting of Hazards 

Through routine inspection of all facilities, materials and equipment, as well as through staff training, all
hazardous or potentially hazardous conditions will be identified, reported and acted upon appropriately.

The superintendent will develop and maintain a written hazard communication program for the district. 
All personnel who, during the performance of their duties, or in an emergency, may be exposed to
chemicals that are potentially injurious will be informed and trained to deal appropriately with these
chemicals.  All employees will be trained to recognize and respond appropriately to the presence of
hazardous chemicals.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

OAR 437-001-0760
OAR 437-002-0080 to -0081
OAR 437-002-0100
OAR 437-002-0120 to -0139
OAR 437-002-0140
OAR 437-002-0144
OAR 437-002-0145
OAR 437-002-0180 to -0182
OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0368
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 437-002-0390
OAR 437-002-0391
OAR 581-022-1420
OAR 581-022-1530

Fazzolari v. Portland Sch. Dist. No. 1J,  303 Or. 1 (1987).
Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2629 (2006); Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 2641-2656 (2006).
Occupational Safety and Health Standards, Hazard Communication, 29 C.F.R. § 1910.1200 (2006).

2/12/04*NC

Reporting of Hazards - EBAA 
1-1

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_001.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBAC 
Adopted: 5/02/02

Safety Committee

Safety committees shall be established to implement the district’s safety program as part of an ongoing
effort to help ensure the safety of students, staff and others while on district property.

The chief financial officer or designee will coordinate the district’s safety committee efforts and maintain
all necessary records.

The superintendent will develop administrative regulations as may be necessary to implement this policy
and meet the applicable Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Division requirements.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 654.176
ORS 654.182

OAR 437-001-0765

CR2/26/09*PH

Safety Committee - EBAC 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/654.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/654.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_001.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBB 
Adopted: 4/05/12

Orig. Code(s): EB

Integrated Pest Management 

To ensure the health and safety concerns of student, staff and community members, the district shall adopt
an integrated pest management plan (IPM)1 which emphasizes the least possible risk to students, staff and
community members and shall adopt a list of low-impact pesticides for use with the IPM plan.

The IPM plan is a proactive strategy that:

1. Focuses on the long-term prevention or suppression of pest problems through economically sound
measures that:

a. Protect the health and safety of students and staff;
b. Protect the integrity of district buildings and grounds;
c. Maintain a productive learning environment; and
d. Protect local ecosystem health.

2. Focuses on the prevention of pest problems by working to reduce or eliminate conditions of property
construction, operation and maintenance that promote or allow for the establishment, feeding,
breeding and proliferation of pest populations or other conditions that are conducive to pests or that
create harborage for pests;

3. Incorporates the use of sanitation, structural remediation or habitat manipulation or of mechanical,
biological and chemical pest control measures that present a reduced risk or have a low-impact and,
for the purpose of mitigating a declared pest emergency, the application of pesticides that are not
low-impact pesticides;

4. Includes regular monitoring and inspections to detect pests, pest damage and unsanctioned pesticide
usage;

5. Evaluates the need for pest control by identifying acceptable pest population density levels;

6. Monitors and evaluates the effectiveness of pest control measures;

7. Excludes the application of pesticides on a routine schedule for purely preventive purposes, other
than applications of pesticides designed to attract or be consumed by pests;

8. Excludes the application of pesticides for purely aesthetic purposes;

9. Includes school staff education about sanitation, monitoring, inspection and pest control measures;

1See Model Integrated Pest Management Plan for Oregon Schools at
http://www.ipmnet.org/tim/IPM_in_Schools/Model_School_IPM_Plan_Main_Page.html

Integrated Pest Management - EBB 
1-3



10. Gives preference to the use of nonchemical pest control measures;

11. Allows the use of low-impact pesticides if nonchemical pest control measures are ineffective; and

12. Allows the application of a pesticide that is not a low-impact pesticide only to mitigate a declared
pest emergency or if the application is by, or at the direction or order of, a public health official.

The district shall designate the Director of Operations and Maintenance as the Integrated Pest Management
Plan Coordinator and the authority for overall implementation and evaluation of the IPM plan.

Integrated Pest Management Plan Coordinator

The IPM Plan Coordinator shall:

1. Attend not less than six hours of IPM training each year. The training shall include at least a general
review of integrated pest management principles and the requirements of IPM as required by Oregon
statute;

2. Ensure appropriate prior notices are given and posted warnings have been placed when pesticide
applications are scheduled;

3. Oversee pest prevention efforts;

4. Ensuring identification and evaluation of pest situation;

5. Determine the means of appropriately managing pest damage that will cause the least possible hazard
to people, property and the environment;

6. Ensure the proper use and application of pesticide applications when non-pesticide controls have
been unsuccessful;

7. Evaluate pest management results; and

8. Keep for at least four years following the application date, records of applied pesticides that include:

a. A copy of the label;
b. A copy of the Material Data Safety Sheet;
c. The brand name and USEPA registration number of the product;
d. The approximate amount and concentration of pesticide applied;
e. The location of where the pesticide was applied;
f. The type of application and whether the application was effective;
g. The name(s) of the person(s) applying the pesticide;
h. The pesticide applicator’s license numbers and pesticide trainee or certificate numbers of the

person applying the pesticide;
i. The dates and times for the placement and removal of warning signs; and
j. Copies of all required notices given, including the dates the IPM Coordinator gave the notices.

9. Respond to inquires about the IPM plan and refer complainants to Board policy KL - Public
Complaints;

Integrated Pest Management - EBB 
2-3



10. Conduct outreach to district staff about the district’s IPM plan.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 634.116
ORS 634.700 to-750

R9/29/11 | RS

Integrated Pest Management - EBB 
3-3

http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/634.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/634.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBBA 
Adopted: 5/02/02

First Aid**

In cases of sudden illness or injury to a student or staff member, first aid will be given by school staff. 
Further medical attention to students is the parents’ responsibility, or of someone the parents designate in
case of emergency.

Each principal is charged with providing for the immediate care of ill or injured persons within his/her area
of responsibility.

Staff members shall report self-administered first aid treatment to an immediate supervisor.

In each school, procedures for handling health emergencies will be established and made known to the
staff.  Each school and school vehicle will be equipped with appropriate first-aid supplies and equipment. 
All employees are expected to know where first-aid supplies and equipment are kept in their work areas.

Designated employees in each building shall hold current first-aid cards.  In compliance with Oregon
Administrative Rules, each school shall have, at a minimum, at least one staff member with a current first
aid card for every 60 students enrolled or an emergency response team per building.  Such team shall
consist of no less than six persons who hold current first aid/CPR cards and who are trained annually in the
district and building emergency plans.  Names of the designated employees will be posted.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS  30.800
ORS 342.126

OAR 437-002-0120 to -0139
OAR 437-002-0161
OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 581-022-0705
OAR 581-022-1420
OAR 581-022-1440
OAR 581-053-0517(13)(e)

HR3/7/02*NC

First Aid** - EBBA 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/030.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBBAA/GBEBC/JHCCC
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): JHCCC

Infection Control - HIV, AIDS, HBV

Infection Control

The district shall use standard precautions universal procedures at all times for infection control.  Each
person is therefore treated as though an HIV, AIDS or HBV1 infection exists.

The district shall develop an Exposure Control Plan that includes infection control procedures for staff and
students.

Procedures staff and students shall include annual in-services; first-aid kits in each school room and each
school vehicle; correct procedures for cleaning up body fluid spills and for personal cleanup. 

Rumor Control

The district shall use a two-pronged approach for rumor control related to HIV, AIDS and HBV before a
rumor begins and during an “active” rumor.

In preparation for rumor control, the district shall annually notify staff, students and parents, through such
means as handbooks and/or other materials of confidentiality and individual rights requirements placed
upon school districts.  The requirements are outlined in Oregon Revised Statutes and Oregon
Administrative Rules.  Individual rights include the right a staff member or a student may have to continue
working or attending school.

The district shall emphasize that if a staff member or a student (/parent) chooses not to divulge an HIV,
AIDS or HBV condition, the personnel in the district will have no information except to reiterate the
requirements in the law regarding confidentiality and individual rights.  This will be stated routinely and in
cases of an “active” rumor.

If the staff member or student (/parent) wishes to divulge information and continues working or attending
school, the district shall meet with the infected party or representative to develop a written procedure.  This
procedure will minimally outline what information will be given, who will give the information, when and
where the information will be given, how the information will be given and who will receive the
information.  The procedures will be signed for approval by the infected party or representative.

The district shall appoint a district spokesperson who shall be responsible for responding to staff, students,
parents, media and the general public.

1HIV - Human Immunodeficiency Virus; AIDS - Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome; HBV - Hepatitis B Virus

Infection Control - HIV, AIDS, HBV - EBBAA/GBEBC/JHCCC
1-2



D

E

L

E

T

E

News/Media

The district shall appoint a district spokesperson who shall respond to media inquiries regarding rumored
or identified HIV, AIDS or HBV cases.

The spokesperson shall stress:

1. School districts are not informed of a person infected with HIV, AIDS or HBV unless the infected
person or his/her parent releases the information;

2. School districts, if informed, may not release the information unless the infected person or parent
gives permission for such release;

3. School districts may not prevent a staff member from working if he/she is able to perform his/her job
responsibilities.  Students have a right to continue to attend school.

The district shall ask the local health department or other health authorities to assist the district
spokesperson in responding to media inquiries.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 581-022-0705
OAR 581-022-1440
OAR 581-053-0517 (13)(c)(e)

2/10/04*NC

Infection Control - HIV, AIDS, HBV - EBBAA/GBEBC/JHCCC
2-2

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-053


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBBAB/GBEBAA/JHCCBA
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 1/11/01,; 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): GBEBC

Infection Control - HIV, AIDS, HBV and Other Bloodborne Pathogens

The Board recognizes that staff/students incur some risk of infection and illness each time they are exposed
to blood or other potentially infectious materials.  While the risk to staff/students of exposure to body
fluids due to casual contact with individuals in the school environment is very low, the Board regards any
such risk as serious.

Consequently, the Board directs adherence to standard precautions universal procedures.  Standard
precautions Universal procedures require that staff and students approach infection control as if all direct
contact with human blood and body fluids is known to be infectious for HIV, HBV and/or other
bloodborne pathogens.1

In order to reduce the risk to staff/students by minimizing or eliminating exposure incidents to bloodborne
pathogens, the Board directs the superintendent to develop and implement an Exposure Control Plan.
The plan shall include training followed by an offer of immunization with Hepatitis B vaccine and
vaccination series for all staff who are required to provide first aid to students and/or staff and/or for all
staff who have a higher risk of occupational exposure as determined by the district..   A post-exposure
evaluation and follow-up shall be made available to any employee sustaining an occupational exposure.

The district shall provide annual staff training in correct procedures for handling/cleaning of body fluids in
a way that minimizes risk of infection.  Staff are required to attend training.  Infection control kits and
other personal protective equipment shall be provided as may be required.

The district recognizes that, as required by OAR 437-002-1030, employees who use medical sharps in the
performance of their duties (e.g., administering injectable medicines to students, such as epinephrine and
glucagon) must, at least annually, be provided with the opportunity to identify, evaluate and select
engineering and work practice controls (e.g., sharps disposal containers, self-sheathing needles, safer
medical devices, such as sharps with engineered sharps injury protections and needleless systems).  The
district will implement such work practice controls, as appropriate.

Documentation, including a sharps injury log, will be maintained as required by OAR 437-002-1035 and
437-002-1030(3)

END OF POLICY

1Bloodborne pathogens - pathogenic microorganisms that are present in human blood and can cause disease in humans.  These
include, but are not limited to, Hepatitis B virus (HBV) and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV).

Infection Control - HIV, AIDS, HBV and Other Bloodborne Pathogens - EBBAB/GBEBAA/JHCCBA
1-2



D

E

L

E

T

E

Legal Reference(s):

OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 437-002-1030
OAR 437-002-1035

2/22/02*MW

Infection Control - HIV, AIDS, HBV and Other Bloodborne Pathogens - EBBAB/GBEBAA/JHCCBA
2-2

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-002


P

 R

  O

 P

  O

 S

 E

 D

Gresham-Barlow SD 10
Code: EBBB

Adopted:  

Injury/Illness Reports

All injuries/illnesses sustained by the employee while in the actual performance of the duty of the
employee occurring on district premises, in district vehicles, at a district-sponsored activity or involving
staff members who may be elsewhere on district business will be reported immediately to a supervisor.  
A written report will be submitted within 24 hours to the safety officer.  Reports will cover property
damage as well as personal injury.

In the event of a work-related1 illness or injury to an employee resulting in overnight hospitalization for
medical treatment2 other than first aid, the safety officer shall inform the Oregon Occupational Safety and
Health Division (OR-OSHA).  A report will be made within 24 hours after notification to the district of an
illness or injury.  Fatalities or catastrophes3 shall be reported within eight hours.

ALL injuries/illnesses sustained by the employee while in the actual performance of the duty of the
employee will be promptly investigated.  As a result of the investigation any corrective measures needed
will be acted upon.

Monthly records will be maintained.  An analysis of the data and trends will be made at least annually.

The Board will receive reports on be notified of serious injuries/illnesses, including accidents involving
district property or employees, students, volunteers or visiting publics, and periodic statistical reports on
the number and types of injuries/illnesses occurring in the district, as well as on the measures being taken
to prevent such injuries/illnesses in the future.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

OAR 437-001-0015
OAR 437-001-0700

OAR 437-001-0760
OAR 581-022-1420

HB 3045 (2013)

R10/24/13 | PH

1An injury or illness is work related if an event or exposure in the work environment caused or contributed to the condition or
significantly aggravated a preexisting condition.

2Medical treatment includes managing or caring for a patient for the purpose of combatting disease or disorder.  The following
are not considered medical treatment: visits to a doctor or health-care professional solely for observation or counseling;
diagnostic procedures including administering prescription medications used solely for diagnostic purposes; and any procedure
that can be labeled first aid.

3A catastrophe is an accident in which two or more employees are fatally injured, or three or more employees are admitted to a
hospital or an equivalent medical facility.

Injury/Illness Reports - EBBB
1-1

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-001
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-001
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-437-001
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBBC 
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): EBBC

Resuscitation Decisions 

The district believes it must protect, to the extent possible, the welfare of the students under its care,
therefore, no employee of the district shall comply with any parental request, written or verbal, for
nonresuscitation of a student.  Resuscitation means an attempt to restore life or consciousness after
apparent death. breathing and/or a pulse.

In a life-threatening situation, district staff will dial 911 for medical assistance and resuscitate any student
requiring it in order to sustain life until relieved by appropriate medical personnel.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS  30.800
ORS 342.126

OAR 437-002-0161
OAR 581-022-0705
OAR 581-022-1420

6/26/99*NC

Resuscitation Decisions - EBBC 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/030.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBC/EBCA 
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): EBC/EBCA

Emergency Procedures and Disaster Plans 

The superintendent will develop and maintain a plan specifying procedures to be used in such emergencies
as disorderly behavior, unlawful assembly, disturbances at school activities, natural disasters, fire, illness
or injury of a student or staff member and use of force on school property.  The superintendent will consult
with city and other appropriate agencies while developing this plan.

The district’s Emergency Procedures Plan will meet the standards of the State Board of Education.

Copies of the Emergency Procedures Plan will be available in every school office and other unit offices. 
Parents will be informed of the district’s plan for the care of students during an emergency situation.  Key
administrators will also keep a copy of the plan at their residence.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107
ORS 431.035 (5)2(e)
ORS 433.260

OAR 437-002-0161
OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 581-022-0705
OAR 581-022-1420

9/28/07 | PH

Emergency Procedures and Disaster Plans - EBC/EBCA 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/431.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/433.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBCB 
Adopted: 10/5/95

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): EBCB

Emergency Drills 

Each school building administrator will conduct and keep a record of emergency drills in accordance with
the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes.  An emergency drill or rapid dismissal for fire, earthquake or
other emergency will be held at least once each month during the school year.  At least three drills on
earthquakes shall be conducted each year.

All schools are required to instruct and drill students on emergency procedures so that students maycan
respond to an emergency without confusion and panic.  The emergency procedures shall include drills and
instruction on fires, earthquakes, which shall include tsunami procedures in a coastal zone and safety
threats.

Instruction on fires, earthquakes and safety threats, and drills for students, shall be conducted for at least 30
minutes each school month.  At least two drills on earthquakes and two drills on safety threats shall be
conducted each year.

Fire Emergencies

Instruction on fire and earthquake dangers and drills for all students shall be conducted for at least 30
minutes each school month.  Drills and instruction on fire emergencies shall include routes and methods of
exiting the school building.

Earthquake Emergencies

Drills and instruction for earthquake emergencies shall include methods the earthquake emergency
response procedure of “duckdrop, cover and hold on” during the earthquake.  When based on the
evaluation of specific engineering and structural issues related to a building, the district may include
additional response procedures for earthquake emergencies.  At least two drills on earthquakes shall be
conducted each year.

Safety Threats

Drills and instruction on safety threats shall include appropriate actions to take when there is a threat to
safety, such as lockdown procedures or other procedures appropriate to the safety threat.

Local units of government and state agencies associated with emergency procedures training and planning
shall review the emergency procedures.

END OF POLICY

Emergency Drills - EBCB 
1-2



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 336.071
ORS 479.140

OAR 437-002-0180 to -0182
OAR 581-022-1420

HR6/26/99*NC

Emergency Drills - EBCB 
2-2

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/336.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/479.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: EBCD 
Adopted: 5/02/02

Emergency Closures**

In case of hazardous or emergency conditions, the superintendent or designee may alter district and
transportation schedules as are appropriate to the particular condition.  Such alterations include closure of
all schools, closure of selected schools or grade levels, delayed openings of schools and early dismissal of
students.

The superintendent will develop and maintain such plans and procedures as are necessary to carry out
alternate school and bus schedules.

At the beginning of each school year students, parents and staff will be informed of the procedures used to
notify them in case of an emergency closure.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 581-022-1420
OAR 581-022-1620
OAR 581-053-0002

HR6/26/99*NC

Emergency Closures** - EBCD 
1-1

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html


D

E

L

E

T

E

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FA 
Adopted: 5/02/02

Facilities Development Goals

Using fiscally-responsible decision making, the district will provide and maintain facilities that offer the
best possible physical environment for learning and working, the Board, in consultation with the
superintendent and in consideration of the input from staff, parents and the community, aims specifically
toward:

1. Providing buildings and renovations that will accommodate and facilitate those new organizational
and instructional patterns that support the district’s educational philosophy and instructional goals;

2. Meeting all safety requirements when remodeling of older structures;

3. Providing building renovations as needed to meet state and federal requirements on the accessibility
and usability of facilities to persons with disabilities;

4. Building design, construction and renovation that will allow low maintenance costs and the
conservation of energy and consideration of benefits of life cycle costing.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107
ORS 332.155

OAR 437-001-0760
OAR 437-002-0020 to -0075
OAR 581-022-1530

Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2629 (2006); Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 2641-2656 (2006).
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).

2/10/04*NC

Facilities Development Goals - FA 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_001.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FB 
Adopted: 7/11/94 

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): FB

Facilities Planning

The Board will gather and analyze appropriate data to evaluate the district’s facilities needs on a long-
range five year basis.  Such data will include, but not be limited to, enrollment projections, anticipated
changes in the instructional program, analysis of community building plans, analysis of sites and
evaluation of present facilities.  A periodic review and update will be provided for the facilities plan.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 195.110
ORS 197.295 - 197.314
ORS 332.155

OAR 581-022-1530

Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2629 (2006); Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 2641-2656 (2006).

HR4/3/01*MW

Facilities Planning - FB 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/195.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/197.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FC 
Adopted: 5/02/02

Capital Construction Program

The Board may submit to voters on any election date specified in Oregon Revised Statutes, the question of
contracting a bonded indebtedness to build or renovate school buildings or to purchase school sites. 
Before such a bond election, the specific needs for facilities will be communicated to the public.  Careful
estimates will be made as to amounts required for the project.

All new construction or alterations to existing buildings will ensure to the maximum extent feasible that
facilities are readily accessible and usable by individuals with disabilities.

Following approval by the voters, the bonds to be issued will be advertised appropriately.  The date of
issue will be coordinated with tax collection dates, payments on bonds already outstanding and favorable
market conditions.  Disposition of the bonds may be accomplished by public sale on a competitive bid or
negotiated basis, as determined by the Board.

The Board will annually appropriate district funds in the bonded debt service fund for the purpose of
paying interest and principal on outstanding bonds.  If sufficient funds are not available in the debt service
fund, the Board will authorize by resolution an interfund loan for the purpose of meeting debt service
requirements.

The capital projects fund is the fund authorized by the approval of the bond issue.  Initial receipts from the
sale of bonds are deposited in, and actual expenditures made from, this fund.  The Board will adopt an
annual appropriation resolution authorizing payments from the fund of the amounts needed to meet
contractual obligations due architects, contractors and other individuals or firms.  The Board will receive
periodic reports on expenditures made from this fund as compared with original appropriations for various
projects.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 195.110
ORS 197.295 - 197.314
ORS Chapter 255

ORS Chapter 294
ORS 328.205
ORS 328.542 - 328.565

ORS 332.155

Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2629 (2006); Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 2641-2656 (2006).
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).

HR2/10/04*NC

Capital Construction Program - FC 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/195.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/197.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/255.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/328.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FEA 
Adopted: 5/02/02

Capital Improvement - Educational Program

To ensure all new and remodeled facilities are designed to best implement the educational program, the
superintendent will provide for detailed educational specifications prior to design and construction of new
buildings or renovation of existing buildings.  These specifications will include descriptions of:

1. All activities that will take place in the building;

2. The curriculum to be housed in the building;

3. Specific architectural characteristics desired;

4. The facilities needed, equipment requirements as provided by law, space relationships to other
facility elements and ready accessibility and usability by persons with disabilities;

5. Pertinent budget and other governing factors.

The preparation of educational specifications serves a two-fold purpose:

1. To encourage staff and community input on the needs, desires and objectives of the educational
program to be conducted within the proposed new building; and

2. To organize this information in a manner that can be easily and clearly interpreted by an architect.

The Board, superintendent, staff, student and citizen representatives and the architect should be involved in
developing educational specifications.  Consultants may be used when deemed necessary by the
superintendent and the Board.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 195.110
ORS 197.295 - 197.314

ORS 332.107
ORS 332.155

OAR 581-022-1530

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).

2/10/04*MW

Capital Improvement - Educational Program - FEA 
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/195.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/197.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FEF/FEFB
Adopted: 7/11/94

Revised/Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): FEF/FEFB

Construction Contracts - Bidding and Awards 

The Board will serve as its own Local Contract Review bBoard.

The Board will procure contracts for construction or renovation of facilities according to the provisions of
state law and Oregon Administrative Rules.  Pre-qualification of bidders may be required by the district.

Contractors shall be registered as required by Oregon law.

For every contract for which a bond is required, a bond with good and sufficient sureties will be required
of the contractor.  The purpose of the bond is to assure:

1. The obligations of the contract are faithfully performed;

2. Payment is promptly made to all persons supplying labor or materials to the contractor or
subcontractor for the work provided in the contract;

3. All contributions for workers’ compensation and unemployment insurance are made promptly;

4. All sums required to be deducted and retained from the contractor’s and subcontractor’s employees’
wages are paid.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and 279C

HR4/3/01*MW

Construction Contracts - Bidding and Awards - FEF/FEFB
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FF
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): FF

Naming of New Facilities 

The Board shall be responsible for naming any building, site or other facility which is the property of the
district.

In considering names for facilities, preference will be given to names associated with the community. 
Names of historical persons, places and events may be considered.  Names of living persons will not be
considered.

Recommendations from parent groups, students and residents of the district will be considered.

The superintendent will, upon request of the Board, prepare a list of possible names for new facilities.

The Board may establish a committee for screening, reviewing and suggesting names.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107

2/8/91*GP

Naming of New Facilities - FF
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FFA
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): FFA

Memorials 

The Board will consider the acceptance of memorial scholarships in honor of persons who have special
significance to the students, the district or the community.  A room or item may be named for the person in
whose honor the scholarship fund is created.  A memorial plaque may be appropriately dedicated whenever
a room or item is designated as a memorial in conjunction with a scholarship fund.

Offers of memorial scholarships will be submitted to the superintendent together with information
concerning the purpose of the memorial and administration of the scholarship fund.

A building principal may receive items for his/her school as a memorial to a student or person having a
special significance to the students of that school.  Items received as memorials become the property of the
district.  Principals must have the superintendent’s approval to accept any item that may require additional
maintenance cost to the district.  The superintendent will establish guidelines for the acceptance of such
memorials.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107
ORS 332.385

8/6/97*MW

Memorials - FFA
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html


Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: FJ
Adopted: 7/11/94

Readopted: 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): FJ

Temporary School Facilities 

Rented facilities, movable units and other emergency school housing may be inadequate for long-term
public school purposes.  Therefore, the Board’s aim goal is to have sufficient permanent facilities to meet
the needs of school enrollment and the school program.

If circumstances require immediate space not available in public school buildings, facilities will be leased
or moveable structures will be used as a temporary measure.  Any such facility must conform to all
appropriate federal, state and local building and land use codes, health and fire laws, environmental
standards and provisions for accessibility and usability as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107
ORS 332.155

OAR 437-001-0760
OAR 437-002-0020 to -0081
OAR 437-002-0161
OAR 437-002-0180 to -0182
OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0368
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 437-002-0390
OAR 437-002-0391

Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2629 (2006); Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 2641-2656 (2006).
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).

HR2/10/04*MW

Temporary School Facilities - FJ
1-1

http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_001.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html


GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 James Hiu 
 
DATE:  January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 6 - Ashley DuPuis:  Firebird Honor Band 
 
 
EXPLANATION: In our effort to recognize students for exemplary achievements, 

tonight we have the opportunity to recognize Ashley DuPris, a 
junior at Sam Barlow High School.  

 
 Every year, thousands of musicians across the Northwest audition 

for a prized spot in one of the Western International Band Clinic’s 
(WIBC) Honor Bands.  Ashley DuPuis, a saxophonist in the  
Sam Barlow Symphonic Band, was accepted into WIBC’s most 
prestigious band, the Firebird Honor band, as one of the group’s 
top musicians.  While attending the convention with 600 other 
high school instrumentalists in Seattle, DuPuis was one of four 
musicians awarded a $1,500 scholarship to perform in the Pacific 
Honours Ensemble Program (PHEP) in Australia.  PHEP is a 
program in Australia similar to WIBC and each sends four 
musicians to perform in the other’s ensemble.  DuPuis will spend 
10 days touring and performing throughout Australia.  She plans 
to perform in PHEP in the fall of 2014. 

 
 The board is asked tonight to recognize the outstanding 

accomplishment of Ashley DuPris by presenting her with a 
Certificate of Accomplishment.   

 
PRESENTER: James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Certificates of Accomplishment 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board recognize Ashley DuPris 

for her musical accomplishment. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No formal action is required. 
 
JH:pkh:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 James Hiu 
 
DATE:  January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 7 – Kerri Cook and Staci Tatum:  All State Team Soccer Players 
 
 
EXPLANATION: In our effort to recognize students for exemplary achievements, 

tonight we have the opportunity to recognize two All State Team 
soccer players. 

 
Kerri Cook is a senior at Sam Barlow High School.  Kerri has played 
soccer all of her life, and was named the Mt. Hood Conference 
Defensive Player of the year in leading the Bruins to a league 
championship this year, and a Top Ten Ranking in the OSAA RPI.  
Kerri maintains a 3.22 GPA, plans to graduate early this spring, and 
early-enroll at the University of Oregon where she will play on their 
Women's Soccer Team next year. 
 
Staci Tatum is a senior at Gresham High School and has played soccer 
for 14 years.  She is a 4-year varsity starter at Gresham, and was 
selected first team all conference all 4 years.  Beloved by her 
teammates, she was voted captain her junior and senior years.  Her 
senior year she was voted Mt. Hood Conference Offensive Player of 
the year, and First Team All State.  She scored 10 goals this year, and 
scored each of the last 8 games of our season.  Staci carries a 3.93 GPA, 
and is currently undecided as to where she will attend college in the 
fall. 
 

 The board is asked to recognize the outstanding accomplishments of 
these women athletes by presenting each of them with a Certificate of 
Accomplishment.   

 
PRESENTER: James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Certificates of Accomplishment 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board recognize Kerri Cook and 

Staci Tatum for their All State Soccer Team participation. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No formal action is required. 
 
JH:pkh:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter  
 James Hiu 
 
DATE:  January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 8 – Michael Lindblad:  Teacher of the Year 
 
 
EXPLANATION: Tonight the board is asked to recognize Michael Lindblad, a social 

studies teacher at Gresham High School.  The Oregon Council for 
the Social Studies recently named Mr. Lindblad their Teacher of the 
Year. 

 
 The selection committee stated that Mr. Lindblad was the most 

demonstrative of values that a social studies teacher should 
have—going beyond state curriculum, teaching civic engagement 
and responsibility, and reaching out to kids of different 
backgrounds. Currently Mr. Lindblad teaches IB History of the 
Americas and Global Perspectives. 

 
 On behalf of our school district, Mr. Lindblad is congratulated for 

earning this award and for all that he does to inspire and engage 
student learners at Gresham High School. 

 
PRESENTER: James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board recognize Gresham 

High School teacher Michael Lindblad for his dedication and 
leadership with high school students. 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: No formal action is required. 
 
JKH:pkh:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 

Gresham, OR 97030-3825 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Randy Bryant 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE:  No. 9 – Sharon Dunn-Hoffert:  National Board for Professional Teaching 

Standards (NBPTS) 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The board is asked tonight to recognize a Gresham-Barlow School 

District teacher who has renewed her National Board for 
Professional Teaching Standards Certification this year. 

 
As the board is aware, earning initial NBPTS certification is 
rigorous and requires extensive documentation and assessment of 
one’s teaching.  This certification work requires the completion of 
comprehensive portfolios documenting their teaching pedagogy 
plus the intense analysis of and reflection on their teaching 
practice.  The renewal process requires teachers to show how they 
have continued their professional involvement and commitment 
to accomplished teaching.  They must submit a portfolio with four 
entries and two videos to provide sufficient evidence of how their 
practices meet national teaching standards and that their 
professional growth has focused on increased student learning. 

 
It is perhaps the most powerful professional development 
experience available to teachers who are interested in improving 
their teaching practice.  Certification is available to teachers with 
three or more years of teaching experience.  

 
 The teacher that we are honoring tonight for the renewal of her 

NBPTS certificate is: 
 

Sharon Dunn-Hoffert  East Orient Elementary School 
     Third Grade Teacher 

Early Childhood/Generalist 
 

Our recognition will include honoring Ms. Dunn-Hoffert tonight 
through the presentation of a board certificate and the addition of 
the new dates of renewing her certification on the district display 
board honoring NBPTS teachers.  In addition, her name and new 
dates for the renewal will be added to the district’s web page that 
recognizes NBPTS teachers. 



Board of Directors 
Re:  No. 9 - Sharon Dunn-Hoffert:  National Board for Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS) 
January 9, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
  In total, our district currently employs 28 teachers who are 

nationally certified.  Additional teachers from our district have 
received the certification, but have since not renewed, moved, 
retired, or joined the administrative ranks. 

 
PRESENTER: Randy Bryant 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Certificate of Recognition 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board recognize Sharon 

Dunn-Hoffert for her accomplishment. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No formal action is required. 
 
RB:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Athena Vadnais 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE:  No. 10 – School Board Recognition Month 
 
 
EXPLANATION: For the past several years, the month of January has been 

identified as a time when special efforts are made in communities 
throughout the state to acknowledge the efforts of school board 
members and to show appreciation for their contributions to the 
success Oregon’s students enjoy. 

 
  This year, as in the past, the administration wishes to call the 

public’s attention to the critical and essential nature of the work of 
our school board members. 

 
  In addition, the administration offers a proclamation signed by 

Governor John Kitzhaber on November 15, 2013, that highlights 
the efforts of school board members. 

 
PRESENTER: Jim Schlachter 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: A proclamation by the governor declaring the month of January 

2014 as School Board Recognition Month  
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends that the proclamation be read 

into the official record of tonight’s meeting. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
AV:lc 





GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 11 – Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update 
 
 
EXPLANATION: Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation updates are typically 

presented every-other month.  Accordingly, the Foundation’s 
executive director, Victoria Alley, or a representative will be 
present this evening to report on Foundation activities. 

 
PRESENTER: Victoria Alley or a Foundation representative 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Athena Vadnais 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE: No. 12 – District Advisory Council (DAC) Report 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The District Advisory Council did not meet in December because 

of winter break; therefore, there will not be a DAC report this 
evening. 

 
 The next DAC meeting will be on January 16, 2014, at Hogan 

Cedars Elementary School. 
 
PRESENTER: Athena Vadnais 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None  
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE:  No. 13 – Preparation for Negotiating a Collective Bargaining Agreement  
  with the Gresham-Barlow Education Association 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The current Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between the 

Gresham-Barlow School District #10J and the Gresham-Barlow 
Education Association / East County Bargaining Council will 
expire on June 30, 2014.  As required in the CBA, prior to the 
expiration of the contract, the District and the ECBC, through the 
Executive Council of the GBEA have agreed to begin negotiating a 
successor agreement. 

 
 At a meeting in December of 2013, District and GBEA leaders 

discussed future negotiations. Pre-negotiation meetings will be 
scheduled to address key issues identified by both sides prior to 
or shortly after the exchange of proposals.  The identification of 
negotiation dates is in process with a common goal of exchanging 
proposals in early February. 

 
 The district believes completing bargaining prior to the expiration 

of the current contract is beneficial for students, staff, and the 
community.  It would allow all of us to stay focused on instruction 
of students and take away the uncertainty and uneasiness that can 
come from a long, drawn out negotiations process. 

 
 The district is committed to its Labor Negotiations Guiding 

Principles.  By following these principles, the contract with our 
teachers union will support a working environment focused on 
student success and teacher effectiveness.  The contract will 
provide a competitive compensation package for employees that 
is financially responsible. 

 
 A negotiations process that is respectful and open supports 

collaborative, productive relationships.  The district is committed 
to negotiations communication that is accurate, clear and 
respectful. 

 



Board of Directors 
Re:  No. 13 – Preparation for Negotiating a Collective Bargaining Agreement  
with the Gresham-Barlow Education Association 
January 9, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 Regular updates will be reported at future regular board meetings 

in an effort to keep all informed of the progress toward a new 
collective bargaining agreement. 

 
PRESENTER: Jim Schlachter 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY Labor Negotiation Guiding Principles Supporting the Mission and 
MATERIALS: Vision Core Values of the Gresham-Barlow School District 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.   
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
JS:lc 



 

11-18-13 

Labor Negotiation Guiding Principles 
Supporting the Mission and Vision Core Values  

of the Gresham-Barlow School District 
 

The long-term vision is central to all decisions. This vision is defined first and foremost by a focus on 
teaching and learning and the preparation of all students for success. Additionally, our vision attends to 
learning opportunities, community relations and partnerships, and the effective use of district resources. The 
long-term vision for financial sustainability, accompanied by long-term revenue forecasts requires innovative 
and effective approaches to meeting financial requirements. 

 
Improving Learning Conditions 
• We are committed to the use of proven practices and programs that support excellence in teaching and 

learning. Effective school master schedules that accommodate these practices is key to teacher 
effectiveness and student success.  
 

• Providing teachers with a professional working environment includes the development and use of 
calendars and schedules that provide time for professional learning communities designed to support 
the ongoing improvement of teaching and learning.  
 

• We are committed to expanding the range of options offered to students. Options include, but are not 
limited to proficiency-based instruction, on-line learning, and flexible work hours and calendars. 

 
• We will continue to improve effective teacher support systems and explore opportunities for assistance 

in providing support for maintaining a quality staff. 
 

Being Financially Responsible 
• A balanced budget with adequate reserves for economic and operational uncertainties must be 

maintained to comply with state law, district policy, and sound business principles. Financial 
requirements must align with long-term revenue and expenditure forecasts that support student 
learning. 
 

• To ensure financial requirements are sustainable over the long-term, one-time funds or short-term 
unsustainable solutions should not be used to meet on-going commitments (e.g. salaries and benefits). 

 
• To reduce the need for annual budget reductions that negatively impact student learning, (staff lay-offs, 

budget reduction days, larger class sizes), financial commitments cannot exceed available resources. 
 

• A competitive employee compensation package within the limits of available district resources should be 
maintained.  

 
• Employee earnings and competitiveness should be measured according to total compensation that 

includes salaries, employer paid health benefits, and retirement benefits. Employee compensation must 
be examined in light of compensation history, long-term revenue projections, and insurance reform 
implications. 

 
Maintaining High Quality Communication 
• Communication must always be open, accurate, responsive and respectful. 

 
• Collaboration and productive relationships are supported through effective communication between the 

district and all employees. 
 

• Communication is effective when presented in clear, plain language and backed by factual data, solid 
evidence, and credible sources. 

 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Teresa Ketelsen 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE:  No.  14 – Elementary Math Pilot  
 
 
EXPLANATION: Since we have transitioned to the Common Core State Standards 

in mathematics, our current math adoption at the elementary level 
does not align with the standards that need to be taught.  Thirty 
elementary teachers from across the district participated in a pilot 
of math programs this fall.  Each teacher spent six weeks teaching 
with My Math (McGraw Hill publication) and six weeks teaching 
with Go Math (Houghton Mifflin Harcourt publication). 

 
  At four different points during the pilot, each teacher was asked 

to provide feedback on a very specific set of criteria.  The criteria 
are the specific attributes the creators of the Common Core State 
Standards have identified as crucial components of an effective 
program.  In addition to that feedback, each of the teachers was 
asked to make a recommendation regarding adoption of materials 
at the end of the twelve-week pilot.  

 
  The recommendations from the group were split.  The majority of 

the 3rd-5th grade teachers recommend that we purchase My Math 
as our core math program.  The K-2nd teachers felt that neither 
program meets our needs.  They recommend we consider 
alternative programs.  At this point we are evaluating the viability 
of adopting from two different publishing companies for K-2nd 
and 3rd-5th. 

 
PRESENTER: Teresa Ketelsen and Angie Kautz 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This item is for information only.  
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  No action is required at this time. 
 
TK:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 James Hiu 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
RE:  No. 15 – Open Enrollment (HB 3681) Application Process – First Reading 
 
 
EXPLANATION: This is the third year of the Open Enrollment process, regarding 

House Bill 3681, which was approved by the 2011 Oregon 
Legislature.  This bill provides an additional method of school 
choice for Oregon students. 

 
 Beginning with the 2012-13 school year, students no longer need 

consent from resident districts to transfer to non-resident districts.  
Instead, non-resident districts can accept students through an 
“open enrollment” application process.   

 
 Pursuant to the state statutes, the open enrollment period for 

2014-15 will be available to non-resident families from  
March 1, 2014, through March 31, 2014, only.  Applications 
received after March 31 will not be considered in the open 
enrollment process. 

 
 The district administration has identified the number of slots 

available in the Gresham-Barlow School District for the 2014-15 
school year by school and grade level, and recommends 
acceptance of open enrollment applications as provided by the 
new legislation.   

 
 The selection of open enrollment slots was determined through 

the application of a number of considerations that include:  
 
 • give priority to students who are currently attending the 

Gresham-Barlow School District on an Inter-District Transfer 
 
 • ensure that students have enough time to succeed in earning 

high school credits toward graduation 
 
 • align with  the long-term facility capacity projections of the 

district’s 19 schools 
 



Board of Directors 
Re:  No. 15 – Open Enrollment (HB 3681) Application Process  
January 9, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 The proposed open enrollment application process for the 

Gresham-Barlow School District is for one year only (2014-15).  
The board will be asked to review the process on an annual basis 
and determine if it should be extended and/or modified for the 
subsequent year. 

 
PRESENTER: James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY Gresham-Barlow School District, Open Enrollment (HB 3681), 
MATERIALS: 2014-15 Grade and School Slots 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends board review of the open 

enrollment list of available slots for the 2014-15 school year, as 
presented for first reading.  

 
REQUESTED ACTION: Move to accept the Gresham-Barlow School District Open 

Enrollment 2014-15 School and Grade Slots, as presented for first 
reading. 

 
JH:lc 



GRESHAMGRESHAM--BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICTBARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT  
1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

District Office:  (503) 261-4550 
 

OPEN ENROLLMENT (HB 3681) 
Proposed 2014-2015 Grade and School Slots 

 
 

 ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 
School Grade Number of Slots 

1 2 
2 3 Damascus K-8 
6 6 

Total K-8 slots  11 

HIGH SCHOOLS 
School Grade Number of Slots 

Gresham High School 9 
10 

10 
10 

Sam Barlow High School 9 
10 

10 
10 

Total High Schools  40 

 
Priority will be given to students currently attending a Gresham-Barlow school on 
an inter-district transfer in the 2013-14 school year. 
 
* If the number of students seeking consent exceeds the number of students the Board has 

determined will be given consent, approval will be based on an equitable lottery selection 
process. 

 
 


	00 00 Cover
	00 01 Agenda
	01 00 Minutes
	01 01 Minutes
	02 00 Financial Summary
	02 01 Financial Summary
	Board - Report 2013-14 - JAN

	03 00 Personnel
	04 00 Out-of-State Travel
	05 00 Policy Updates
	05 01 Policy Updates
	Policy Changes - Consent Agenda 01-09-14
	Updated Policies - Consent Agenda 01-09-14
	Section D for Board Packet
	DE_DEB_DEC D1
	DED D1
	DFCA D1
	DG D1
	DGA D1
	DH D1
	DI D1
	DIC D1
	DID D1
	DJ D1
	DJB D4
	DJCA G1
	DK D1
	DM D1
	DN D1

	Section E for Board Packet
	EA D1
	EB_EBA D1
	EBAA D1
	EBAC D1
	EBB D1
	EBBA D1
	EBBAA D1
	EBBAB D1
	EBBB G1
	EBBC D1
	EBC_EBCA D1
	EBCB D1
	EBCD D1

	Section F for Board Packet (1)
	FA D1
	FB D1
	FC D1
	FEA D1
	FEF_FEFB D1
	FF D1
	FFA D1
	FJ D1



	06 00 Ashley DuPuis Firebird Honor Band
	07 00 Kerri Cook and Staci Tatum All State Team Soccer
	08 00 Michael Lindblad Teacher of the Year
	09 00 National Board for Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS)
	10 00 School Board Recognition Month
	10 01 School Board Recognition Month
	11 00 Yes Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update.docx
	12 00 DAC Report
	13 00 Preparation for Negotiating a Contract
	13 01 Preparation for Negotiating a Contract
	14 00 Elementary Math Pilot
	15 00 Open Enrollment



